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Historical Sketch of Niagara-on-the-Lake and Niagara Camp.

BY LIEUT.-COLONEL E. CRUIKSHANK. F.R §.C.

bicing nout only the oldest incorporated town in the

Province of Ontario, but also the sitc of the fitst per-

mnanent British scttlement within 1ts limits. By the
terms of a treaty negotined by Sir William  Johnson with the
Scncea Indians upon the 3nd day of April, 1764, a little more
than a year after the cession of the French possessions in North
Amcrica to the British Empire by the Peace of Paris, a narrow
strip of land beginning at Fort Niagara and extending southwarnd
tu the creck above Fort Schlosser, or Little Niagara as it was
then called, “comprehending the whole carrying-place with the
lands on both sides the strait, and containing a tract about four-
teen miles in leagth and four in breadth,” was transferred to
the Crown, togcther with the right of cutting timber on their
lands clscwhere, and the free use of all harbours on Lake
Ontariv, and of all rivers falling into it.  These privileges were
cvideatly suught for purposes of traffic and defence, rather than
colonization; but during the summer of 1780, when the wars of
the Amcrican Revolution were fiercely raging the world over,
and Furt Niagara had become 2 haven of refuge for hundreds
of loyalists, who had been mercilessly evicied from their fusmer
homes in New York and Peansylvania, Sir Frederick Haldi-
mand, who was then Governor General of Canada, determined
to construct a large log barracks on the west bank of the river
far the accommodation of the corps of rifiemen enlisted among
these vefugees by Licut~-Coloncl John Butler of the Indian
Decepartment, and at the same time to cncourage the scttlement
of their families upon the adjacent Crown Lands.  During the
autumn of that year this building, which is still used for military
purpases and commonly kwawa as Butler’s Barracks, was com-
plcted and five or six familics weresclded in log houses near-by.
In three years the number of settlers had increased to forty-six
familics, who had upwards of scven hundred acres of land under
cuitivation, wcll stocked with horses, cattle and swine.  In the
summier of 1784, Licut-Colonel Butler’s corps of rangers was
disbanded, and ncarly five hundred able-bodicd men were added
to the seitlement, which was extended to include the whale
Niagara Peninsula by treaty w.th the Mis:as:auga Indians, and
tibezal zrants of lands were made to all officers and soldicrs. as

NIAG.-\R.-\-O.\'-THE-LAKE cnjoys the distinction of

well as to other loyalists.  Far nearly seven years Furt Nuagara
aad Butler's Barracks had been the headquarters and bse of
operations for this renowned boudy of partisans, whence they had
sallicd forth upon their raids against the American fronticr
extending from Oswego on Lake Ontario to the Blue Licks in
Kentucky. These operations had been attended with such
umarving success and they were so adroit in selecting the point
of attack and the best line of retreat that their batfled cacmices
were wont to declare that it wasas uscless 1o attempt jaursuit
as if they had been a pack of wolves from the forest.

In 1791 Licut.-Governor Simcoc brought with him frem
England the corps knowa as the Queen’s Ranuwers, also mainly
camposed of Amcrican loyalists, specially enlisted for service in
Canada. who were quartered for several years at Quccnston and
Niagara, but were finally disbanded about five years later, when
the majority also became settlers.  Niagara was designated as
the ca;.dtal of the new provinee of Upper Canada, and was soan
aficr incorporated asa town.  In 1705 a site was selected an the
high ground overlooking the mouth of the rfver, for & small
fizkiwork, which was named Fort George in honor of the Xing,
The garrison of Fort Niagara was removed to this place upon
the evacuation of that post in the following year, It was
occupied successively by detachmeats of the $th and 24th Regi-
ments of the Linc, and when these troops were withdrawn in
1798 for scrvice clsewhere, by a part el the Sccond Battalion of
the Royal Canadian Velunteers, enlisted in the Provines to take
their place.  In Scptember, 1802, this corps was dishanded and
the 49th Regiment occupicd the military posts in Upper Canada,
for the next ten years, when it was succeeded by the 41st, which
held them when war was declared by the United States in June
1812, Fort Genrge was the principal garrison and  headquarier
station in the province during that time. It is described a an
official report asan irregular ficldwork, consisting of six small
bastinns faced with framed timber and plank, connccted by lines
of palisadss twelve fect in height, and surrounded by a shallow dry
ditch. Its situation and construction were alike condemned by
the inspecting engincer as being ill-judged and defective.  Al-
though partially ecommanding Fort Niagara it was it«l{ over-
Tooked by high ground on the apposite bank of the river near



I. Muster Parade  Toronto Light Horse. 2. Horses feeding at noon -G, G.B.G. 3. A well-dressed line Squadron “1,° G. G.B. G.
4. Horse groaming in 2nd Drazoon Lines. 5. G.G. B. G, wateriye horses,
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Youngstown. The garrison was lodged in log blockhouses,
affording aquarters for 220 men, besides which there was a separ-
ate building for the officers.  The magazine was built of stone,
with an archedroof, but wasnot considered bomb-proof. The
whole of this fortification was greatly cut of repair, and not
deemed capable of much defence.  Under General Brock's
supervision, huwever, the fort was censiderably strengthened
and severa! detached carthworks were thrown up on command-
ing points in the vicinity. No attack upon it was attempted
until the morning of October 13th, 1812, when, perceiving a
column of troaps on the march to oppese the passage of the
river at Queenston, the garrison of Fort Niagara turn:d ali their
guns upon Fort George and the town of Niagara, with such
destructive effect that in a few minutes the Courthouse and gaol
with fifteen or sixteen other buildings were set_on fire by shells
or hut shot. While the greater part of the militia who occupicd
the fort in the absence of the regular garrison, were employed
in fighting the flames its guns were worked with such vigoer and
cffect by a detachment of the Lincoln Arntillery under Captains
Cameren and Powcll, assisted by two non-commissione 1 officers
uf the 4151 Regiment, that in the course of an hour the Amosi-
can batterics were completely silenced. It was then discovered
that the reof of the magazine, which contained cight hundred
barrels of pawder, had been sct on fire by a shell.  Without an
instant's he:itation Captain Vigorcux of the Reyal Engincers
climbed upon the burning building, and his gallant cxample
being prompily followed by others, the metal covering was
soor torn off and the fames cxtinguished in the timbers under-
ncath. The government storchouse at the water-side near Navy
Hall was, huwever, entirely consumed.

One of the largest guns muunted in Fort Niagara burst
while being discharged. wrecking the pla‘form and disabling
scveral men.  In consequence of this accident and the heavy
fire dirccted against the place from Fert George, it was cvacu-
ated by its garrison, which did not venture to_re-cccupy their
works for scverz] hours after the cannenade had ccased.  Next
day an armistice was concluded which continued in effect until
9 p.m on November 2080, At daybreak on the follawing
mamning Fort George and the ncighboring batterics began a
seconG bombardmeat of Fort Niagara, which had in the mean-
time been consiferably strengthened, but app-ars to have been
weakly garrisoncd, The fire of its guns was irregular and itl-
directed, cexsingat times for ennsiderable inter vals, while flames,
appare.at y caused by the explosion of shells, could be scen rising

from within. Onc of these shells penctrated a bluckhouse,
dismounting the only gun in position there, while another
silenced the cannon mounted on the roof of the mess-house for
more than an hour. Again a gun burst in the fort with dis-
astrous results, and by five o'clock in the afternoon the whole of
its artillery was absolutely silenced. A large building close
under the walls, which concealed the landing place from obser-
vation, had alse been set on fire and burat, One of theguns in
the battery at Youngstown had been dismounted, and the others
only fi.cd an occasional shot at great intervals.  On the Can-
adian side the mess-house at Navy Hall was destroyed and
seventeen buildings were set on fire by hot shot in the_tows,
while many others were much damaged. At dark the British
gun cecased firing, having discharged upwards of two thousand
round shot and shells, while the American batteries were
supposad to have fired nearly an cqual number.

With this cannonade active hostilitics in this vicinity may
be said to have terminated for the next six months, buton the
Sth of May, 1813, the American squadron landed a brigade of
infantry, which had captured York (Toronto) ten days before.
Large fatigue partics were at once sct at work throwing up
batteries along the tiver and building boats, while veinforee-
ments continued to arrive until about scven thousand regular
troaps, amply supplied with ficld artillery, were assembled; whi ¢
their armed vessels, having undisputed contral of the lake, were
in a position 1o cover a landing where they pleased.  To oppose
this formidable force Brigadier General Vincent _had only 1050
rezular soldicrs, with five ficld picces, 330 militia and fifty
Indians, Axit was deemed necessary to witch 2 front of cleven
miles, extending from Queenston ta the mouth of the Four Mile
Creek on Lake Ontario. this small bady was subdivided into
three brigades of nearly cqual strength, une of which was
assizned to the defence of the river and another to the lake
front, while the third was held in reserve near Fort George. At
that time this post was armed with five guns.  Six detached
batteries on its left mounted ten guns. Al of these, however,
werce open in the rear and liable to be enfiladed or taken in
reverse by vessels upon the lake. At intervaiz the bank of the
river betweea Fort Gearge and Quecenston there were three
other battcrics, cach mounting one  gua, and at the latter
place there were two batteries mounting three muns Al of
thess warks require:d small garrisons, and Vincent's weak force
was accordingly oo much scattered to be quickly concentrated
atl any point,



1. Skirmishing ¢rill, Ni. 7 Company, 35th Regiment. 20 Band, 91st Highlanders, on thic march, 3. <Sih Highlanders, 4. 77th Regie
ment taking it casy in fickl, 5. 23nd Regiment in tichl, 6, 36th Regiment in ficld,
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Before daybreak on May 25 a British picket on the river
heard the encary launching boais at the Five Mile Meadows near
Lewiston, and xave the atarm.  The gun at Brown’s Point
began firing in that dircction, and at dawn the garrison of Fort
Geaorge opened fire upon some boats that could be dimly scen
coming duwn the river closc 10 the opposite bank.  This im-
mediately drew upan them the concentrated firc of no less than
wwenty-five heavy guns and mortars mounted in Fort Niagara
and adjacent batteries arrange:] in the formof a ¢rescent at
distances varyving from seven hundred to one thousand yards
The twelve-pounder in Fort George was soon dismounted by
round shot, which shattered its carriage. and before seven
o'clock cvery barrack and other womden building inside the
fort was sct on fire by thz inczssant shower of hoteshotl and
shells that raincd upon ait.  The gunners were soan driven by
thic fiames from the twenty-forr-pountdicr near the flagsiafl, but
the unequal contest was gallantly maintained by a gun of the
same calibre in the cavalier, and a smaller picee in the north-
weastern  bastion, until Major Holcroft, percciving  that the
barracks and blockhouse would be tatally destroyed, and that
ahclls were bursting in every comer of the works, directe:d these
undaunted artillerisis to abandon their guns and retire umder
caver. Duaing all this titne the guns at Misasauga Paint amd
the Chessy Tres hid remained sileat by the order of Licut.-
Coloncl Myors, who hoped by o daoing to deprive the eacmiy of
any cxcuse for tuming their batterics upon the town, and the
other detacied hatterics scem o have taken little part in the
action from want of ammuanition,  The Americans discontinuzd
firing abouwt two o'clock, and during the cnursc of that aficrmoeon
and the . ewing day their rowhoais closcly recaanaitered the
shore and took seundings within gun shot withaut the slightest
melestation. As a3 resull of their observations bueys were
placed 1o mark the stations 10 be uccupicd by their ships to
silence the share baticrics and cover the landing of troops

Sharntly afier reveille had sounded on the moming of May
27th a racke? wag £20n 10 rise from the ram it of Fort Niagara
and a siagle gun was discharged,  This proved to be a signal
for all the American batterics to begin a cannonade. which was
not returnced, amd coased at the cnd of halfan haur,  Loag after
the sun ha:l risen o thick fog hung over the lake and river: hut
whea this rolled away about cight o'cl.wck the American flcet,
cangsling of sixtcen armed vessels was sean standing acrose
the mauth of the river, clesely fmllawed by ane humtred and
thiriv-four large boats and scnws Alled wiih wen, formeld in

three compact divisions, moving with great regularity and pre-
cisian.  Their approach was favarcd by a zentle brecze from
the castward, which, however, scarcely raisal a ripple on the
surface of the water. The united broadsides of these vessels
amnunted to filty-onc guns, mostly of long range and heavy
calibre, and they took up the stations assigned them without the
slizhtest oppasition, sweeping the share in cvery dircction with
their fire.  Their land batterics re-opencd at the same time, and
the British pogition in the vicinity of Niagara and Fort George
waz subjected to 3 cross-fire from mare than seventy guns amd
mortars. which scarched cvery part of it within range, and
casily overwhelme:d any attempt to reply.  The landing of the
troops began about an hour Iater, ncar the mouth of the Two
Mile Creck, where a level, sandy beach, shelicred by a stcep
bank afforded a favorable position for them to form up afier
Ieaving their boaix  Ag so00n as they alttempied 10 gain the
plain they were assailed by three companice 0f the Glengarsy
Light Iafaniry, two companics of the st Lincoln Militia and
the grenadicrs of the Rayal Newfoundland Regiment and
driven back in disorder.  The guns af the shipe which had
ceased firing then reopeacd and forced the British troopsto take
shelter in a neighb-ring ravine, where they were ©an jained by
three hundred of t ¢ 8th Regiment of the Litne.  The Amcricans
continued 1o reccive reinforcements until the aumber un shore
cxcecded two thousand. opposed by not more than five hundred
anisivy, A sccond attempt to ascend Jhe lank was repulsed
bat a tard succeeded, and after forming on the plain above, thie
hopeless strugple was continted for 2 quarter of an hour, during
which the opnosing lines exchanged several volleys at a distance
of not morc than ten or fifticen vards,  Numbers prevailed and
the remnant of the Brtish force was obligad to retreat to 2
secun i ravine about three hundred yands in the reas leaving
nearly thees hundred killed and wounded behind,  Five campe
anics of the g9th, with a ficld Tun, came 10 its support. and after
vemaining in this position until its flank was threatened by a
wming wovement, orders were given o retire through the
Gslds in the direction of St Davids.  This was ¢ffected withos

mnlestation and a junction formed with the troops retrcating
from the vicinity of Fort Genrge, which was at the same time
abandoncd and its magazine blown up.  General Vincent con-
tnucd hig retreat 3o Burlington Heights where he arrived on
the lagt day of May, but on the night of the ifth of Junc he
wrned upan his pursucrs, and surpridng their camp at Stoacy
Creek. struck sich o stinging blow that they fell back in haae



SEEN THE FiRST DAY
L Piching tent \rmv Medial Corpre. 2 Regiment at dack ready to march to the Cama Groumds,

3- Disemlbarking from
N.N.Gosstcamer. 3. Unlaading stares. 5. Baggage commpg inte camp,




HISTORICAL SKETCH OF NIAGARA-ON-THE-LAKE AND NIAGARA CAMD,

to Niagara, leaving two generals and more than two hundred
other prisoners in his hands.  Another scvere check was ad-
ministered to the invaders at the Beaver Dams in the tuwaship
of Thorokl where an entire column of acarly six hundred men
was surrounded and compelled to surrender.  These reveiscs
had such a disphiiting eficct that they shut themsclves up in an
intrenched camp adjoining the western flank cf Fort George,
with their piquets thrown out as far as the line of the Two Mile
Creck and McFarland's house cn the River Recad.  Hete they
were closely watched and virtually blockadad for several
months by a much infcrior force. During this period many
smart skirmishes took place.  On July 8ih the whole of an Am-
crican outpost, numbering forty men, was killed or taken at
Ball’s farm on the Swamp Road, and on August 24th a recon-
nuissance in force surprised all the American outposis at day-
hreak, driving them into camp with the loss of seventy prisoners,
Intelligence of General Precier's defeat on the river Thames
cempelled Vincent 10 abanden his advanced positicn, and again
withdraw 10 Burlingien Heighis, about the middle of Octobier,
but un the seventh af December his advance guard, under Col-
oncl John Murray, was pushed forward 10 St.Catharines.  Three
days later what semaincd cfthconce flourishing town of Niagara
was deliberately bumt by the arder of tk > Commandant at Fort
Gearge. preparatory 1o the cvacuatios «of that pest. Murray
then advanced with such unforescen rapidity that the American
sarrison was forced to retire acress the river, leavingg their tents
standing, and several picces of artillery Iving in the ditch of the
fori, which they had not iime to remove,

On the moraing of December 101h Fast Niagara was taken
by aseanlt, and an American force was at the same time drven
frem the battery en Lewisten Heights leaving behind their ar-
tillery and a number of prisoners.  This viclorious camaign
cuncluded with thic captuse of Black Rock and Buffalo on De-
cember joth.

Duning the spring and carly summer of 1513 2 small carth-
work, survounded by a dry ditch, and eaclasing a brick tower,
was constructed en Missarauga Paint, named a1 the time ™ Fent
Riall.” in honeur of the Major General then in ccmmand on the
Niapara fronticr but which is now known as " Fort Misasauga.”
and Fort George was repaired and strengthenod.  After his de-
feat at Chippawa on July $th Genezal Riall placed a garrison of
nearly twelve huadrad men in these forts and retived to the
Tweniy Mrde Creck, but, although they were closcly recene
noitered by the victorious Americans, who apiwoached witkin
cannra-shol, no asaull wag atiempiel

After the conchnion of peace they were ganisoned by the
soth Regiment, which was relicved by the Joth.  Daring the Re-
ellion of 18378 they were succersively ocvupied by detach.
ments of the 3rd, $30d, King's Drageon Guands and 1t Fronticr
Light Infaniry. In 1851 the Reyal Canadian Rifles Regiment
war cmblicd for frantier service. and wntil its dishaskiment in
1%70 a detachment of that come wac quattered here,  Frem Aps
1l 1863 10 Al 186 the Savend Administeazive Baualion wf

Voluntcer Militia was stationed on this frontier, with headquar-
te1s a1 Niagara,

From the date of the carlicst organization of the militia o
Uprper Canada the town had been the headquarters of the First
Regiment of Lincoln Militia, which azscnliled hicze anauaily up-
on the 41h of Junc, the birthday of King George the Third, for
muster and carollment, until the accesssien ¢f Queen Victoria in
1837. It was not, however, until 1872 that the Comion was def-
initcly sclecied as a training-greund for a considerable body of
troops.  In Junc of that yecar the first divisional camp of in-
structis 0 for Military District No. 2 was formed,and attended by
4703 cflicers and men.  The Camp in Junce 1872 was stll targer,
bemng composed of 435 cfficers and 35433 non.ccmmissioned
cfliccis and priva‘es.  With the exception of 2 very fow years
since, camps have been foimed here annually, varying in size
fram less than two thousand 10 nearly six thousand men, aud
have been attended at some time not only by all the cerps in
Military District No. 2, but by most of those in the 1wo adjoin.
ing distiicts.

1.IST OF CORPS OF THE CANADIAN MILITIA
WHICH HAVE BEEN IN CAMP AT NIAGARA BE.
TWEEN 1871 AND 1906:

Reyal Canadian Dragoons, Reyal Canadian Regiment, Gov-
crmor-General's Body  Guard, 151 Hussars, 20d Dragoons, 3rd
Prince of Wales Canadian Dragocns, 9th Toronte Light Horse,
ath, 7th. gth, 1th and 16:h Ficld Baueries, Canadian Eugincers
2 Ficld Co., Corps of Guides; INFANTRY: 2l Queens Own
Riflcs, 10th Reval Grenadiers, 12th Regsment, 13th, 16, 1gth,
20th, 2204, 231d, 261h, 271h, 28th, 29th, 301h, 311, 33nd, 33rd. 34th,
35th, 36th, 37th, 35th, 301h, s0th, $2ad. g3th, g5th, $6th, $7th, 38h,
<9th, 30th, 571k, 30th, 77th, 91st, 971h, Canadian Armiy Scrvice
Comps, Army Medieal Corpg, Ficld Ambulance Noso N\, X7 and
N1, Niagara Falls Cadet Cempany.

N

The Niagara Historical Socicty passesses an extensive and
unique collection of books, papers, docutaenis and objects of
histosical interesy, for the accommadation of which a handsome
huilding has recently licen crzcted in the imincliate vicinity of
the camp-ground.

The lollowing localitics have alsobeen appropriatclymarked
by the Secicty with stonc monuments:  The grave of General
Hrack at Fart Gearge: The Battlefield of May 2;th, 1513: The
site of the Indian Council House: The site of the Gleaner print-
ing officc and Masonic
Hall, built in 3702; The
zite of Navy Hall; The .
house of Camte «de Puis.
ave: The site of Licut.

Goverainr Nimone's TCse
denee.
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THE SHAM FIGHT.
1. 48th Highlanders stacking asmis at Brock™s Maaum-nt. 2. Guarding road  gath Rea't. |30 Seene at Queenvion quarsies, 3. A
Queenston quarrics *Fire!” 5. Gen, Otter and umpaies near Broek's Monument, 6. 36th Peel marching to camp
after the fight. 7. Near Broek™s Monument “Readyv?™ 8, GoGl BUGL hea led by Ficut-Cal, Merritt on soad south of St Davids,
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OFFICERS OF THIRD INFANTRY BRIGADE
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ARMY SERVICE CORPS CaM.

WITH THE ARTILLERY MEN  AND WOMEN Ton,
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1. Horseshoeing -G.G.B.G. 2. Toronto Light Horse ~ready for inspection.

4. G.G.B.G. rcady for inspection,

5. Sccond Dragaons  ready for fuspection,

3. Sccond Dragoons returning ‘rom rifle hutts,
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OFFICERS OF FOURTH INFANTRY BRIGADE



1. Ficld Ambulance Nos. 10, 11 and 12, 2. Water Carts - Army Mcdical Corps. 3. 1., umpeters, 2nd Dragoons.
3. Ambulance Wagons Army Medical Corps. 3. Y. M. C. A. tent on Camp Grounds,
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1. Serving meat rations to cooks nf 12th Reet. 2. Regulars from Stanley Barracks, who acted as police during camp. 3. Rifle pits—
taken from rear. 4. Ficlleatrenchacent  taken from rear. 3. 3ist Regiment prepaning o catrain after camp,



1

The Auta in Waifare Property of Majoe W, E. & Kuowlex,  The other geatlemen are SCALING DRI
LicutsCnl, Pielvmy, Major Orr and Capl. Hagar  all wtlicors of the J7th Reg’t. The beadle
lishisnf the macuac helpd at the distribmtion of rationg at the biwuac on Queension
Heights  <hara fight.
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1. Atshe rific bulte 2. Uninading bread, 3 The Wlanker throw,

& Cleaning hamcss 3. Poor "Saoxlalll™- .G.G. R.G.
« The toilet  2nd Dragoons



HARRBOR SCENE AT OLD NIAGARA.

NMGENAL DRUL, -SPELIANG THE WORD Nel-\-G-A-R-A.



THE AUDERSHOT OVENS AT NIAGARA CAMP.

Great woodl fires are built in these semi-circular sicel oveas,  When the wood has hurncd out the coals and ashes are withdrawn
and the bread and roasting pans put in their place.  The retained heat sufficiently bakes and roasts.



1. Youngest soldier in camp—Stanlcy Fleming, aged 7 years, of Stanley Barracks, Toroate. 2. Shinc! 3. Stirring the Scoich
blood of 2nd Dragoon officers.- James Allen, piper, aged 12 years, Brantford. 4. Cantcen, 2nd Dragoons
3. Gen. Otter and staff on ficld day.  The General is second framn the front.



ARMY MEDICAL CORPS

——



I. Pecling potatacs, 2. A linc of caoking outtits in the infantry camp. 3, 4, 5. With the cooks.

6. Dinncr in the artillery camp,
7. The oflicers” mess, 2nd Dreagoons



NGINEERS

E

TASTWORKS AND BRIDGE BUILT BY TORONTO

B

INFANTRY Cawmp



- ¥ TS

.~ . - . - " BRI .~ ‘s
- ¢ | TSP | ..W"ZN*-..‘J..&.-'\M_-&-

1. Officcis 2ad Dragoans,

2, G.G. B. G. :aarching to the vifle butts. 3. Mustcer.

4. Cavalry scouting in the couatry.




TWELFTH REGIMENT (YORK) ARRIVING.



NIAGARA RIVER, QUEENSTON HEIGHTS AND BROCK’S MONUMENT

STREET SCENE IN OLD NIAGARA

PR S waro il -

-



CHURCH PARADE.



